St Andrew’s Community Chapel

St Andrew’s Community Chapel (front and inside view) was built by the British Royal Navy in 1963. Vice Adm. Sir Desmond Dreyer, Commander in Chief of the British Far East Fleet, laid the corner stone to provide military and community members a proper place of worship. 

Dreyer, born at Cheriton, Hampshire, was the younger son of Adm. Sir Frederic Dreyer. He went to Dartmouth Naval College at the age of 13. A midshipman in 1927, he qualified in gunnery in 1936 and joined HMS Ajax in 1937. In 1940 he became gunnery officer in an anti-aircraft cruiser squadron and took part in that year's Norwegian campaign. After a year on the Home Fleet staff, Dreyer became gunnery officer on the battleship Duke of York in 1942, in time for the "Torch" landings in French North Africa in November. Postwar, he was second-in-command on HMS Vanguard, Britain's last battleship. In 1956, he was chief of staff to the C-in-C, Mediterranean, at Suez. He was made CBE for this, and as a rear admiral served as assistant chief of naval staff. He commanded Commonwealth naval forces in the Far East as a vice-admiral in 1962 during the "confrontation" with Indonesia, for which he was knighted. A full admiral from 1965, Dreyer was Second Sea Lord in charge of personnel when, like the rest on board Admiralty, he resigned over Labour's decision to dispense with aircraft carriers. Dreyer became the first Ministry of Defense chief adviser on personnel and logistics, his final post before leaving the Navy in 1968. He married Elizabeth Chilton in 1934; she died in 1958. Their son and daughter survive him. In 1959 he married Marjorie Whiteley, who died in 1997. Admiral Sir Desmond Parry Dreyer died May 15 2003. 

In 1970 the British forces pulled out of Singapore and St. Andrew’s was used by local and foreign forces stationed in the area. 

In 1991 the United States took over the chapel and renamed it St. Andrew’s Community Chapel. 

The chapel was renovated in 2002, bringing the chapel to be one of the most beautiful historic buildings in the Sembawang neighborhood. 

